
 
 
 
 

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF  

SAN BERNARDINO 
 

TO BE HELD AT 715 EAST BRIER DRIVE 
SAN BERNARDINO, CALIFORNIA 

April 8, 2025 AT 3:00 P.M. 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
PUBLIC SESSION 

 
 
1) Call to Order and Roll Call 
  
2) Additions or deletions to the agenda 
 
3) General Public Comment - Any member of the public may address the Board of 

Commissioners on any matter not on the agenda that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board. To make a comment on a specific agenda item, you may do so 
during the meeting or, alternatively, please submit your comments via email by 1:00 
p.m. on the Tuesday of the Board meeting. Comments should be limited to 250 words or 
less Please submit your comments via web at https://hacsb.com/board-of-
commissioners/ or email at publiccomment@hacsb.com. Your comments will be placed 
into the record at the meeting. Efforts will be made to read the comments into the record, 
but some comments may not be read due to time limitations. 

 
 

DISCUSSION CALENDAR 
(Public comment is available for each item on the discussion calendar) 

 
 
4) Receive the Executive Director’s Report for April 8, 2025.  

(Page 1) 
 
5)  Receive the board building presentation for April 8, 2025, an update of the Housing 

Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s development projects. 
(Page 2) 

 
6) Adopt Resolution No. 208 approving revisions to the Admissions and Continued 

Occupancy Policy governing the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s 
Public Housing program. 

 (Pages 3-37) 
 
7)  Adopt Resolution No. 209 approving the policy for the sale of single-family homes within 

the ownership structure of Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino. 
 (Pages 38-42) 
 

AGENDA AMENDMENT: 

Amendment to the board agenda item #08 – 4/4/2025 

https://hacsb.com/board-of-commissioners/
https://hacsb.com/board-of-commissioners/
mailto:publiccomment@hacsb.com


8)  Retroactively authorize the Executive Director to execute the lease agreement for 
Sterling Apartments with Sterling HACSB, LLC.   

 (Pages 43-100) 
 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 
 APPROVAL OF CONSENT ITEMS: # 9-12 
 
9) Approve delinquent landlord accounts for the Housing Services Programs to be written 

off as collection losses.   
 (Pages 101-102) 
 
10)  Approve the meeting minutes for the special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of 

the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino held on March 17, 2025. 
(Pages 103-110) 

 
11) Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through December 2024. 

(Pages 111-114) 
 
12)  Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as 

collection losses for the month of January 2025. 
 (Pages 115-121) 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
13) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government Code 
Section 54956.9. 
Number of Cases: One Case 

 
14) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives: Jennifer Dawson, Director of Administrative Services 
Employee Organization: Teamsters Local 1932 

 
15) Individual Board member comments. 
 
16)       Adjourn 

 
 
 
This agenda contains a brief description of each item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.  In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, this meeting agenda is posted at least 72 
hours prior to the regularly scheduled meeting at the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino (HACSB) Building located at 715 East Brier Drive, San Bernardino, California, 
92408. The agenda and its supporting documents can be viewed online at 
http://www.hacsb.com.  However, the online agenda may not include all available supporting 
documents or the most current version of documents. 
 
If you challenge any decision regarding any of the above agenda items in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised during the public testimony 

http://www.hacsb.com/


period regarding that agenda item or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of 
Commissioners at, or prior to, the public meeting. 
 
 
It is the intention of the HACSB to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  If you 
require special assistance, HACSB will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable 
manner.  Please contact Cynthia Robinson at (909) 890-5388 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting to inform us of your particular needs. 
 
HACSB ofrece asistencia idiomática gratis. Para ayuda con este documento, por favor llámenos 
al (909) 890-0644. 
 



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Executive Director’s Report for April 8, 2025 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Receive the Executive Director’s Report for April 8, 2025. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #2: To be known as a trusted provider of safe, dignified, and 
desirable homes and environments that enrich and add value to the community.  
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
This item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino (HACSB) as there is no financial impact associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Executive Director’s report summarizes ongoing initiatives of HACSB’s strategic plan, Moving 
to Work activities, overall agency updates, as well as other initiatives federally regulated by the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on April 3, 2025. 

 

1



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino  

SUBJECT  
..Title v

Board Building Presentation for April 8, 2025 
..End 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Receive the board building presentation for April 8, 2025, an update of the Housing Authority of 
the County of San Bernardino’s development projects. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
Aspirational Statement #5: To create, build and utilize partnerships that provide 
opportunities and create a meaningful difference in the lives of the families that we serve, 
maximizing our resources by mobilizing the talents of our community partners. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Bernardino (HACSB) as there is no financial impact associated with this item.  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Per the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) Commissioner Lead the 
Way Training and Moving to Work designation responsibilities, board building is required to 
provide the Board of Commissioners with information regarding ongoing initiatives of HACSB’s 
strategic plan, Moving to Work (MTW) activities, overall agency updates, as well as other 
initiatives federally regulated by HUD.  

This month’s board building presentation will include an update of HACSB’s development 
projects. 

PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on April 03, 2025. 

2



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 8, 2025  

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 208 approving revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy 
Policy governing the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s Public Housing 
program. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #2: To be known as a trusted provider of safe, dignified, and 
desirable homes and environments that enrich and add value to the community. 
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of the proposed revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) 
will have no direct financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s 
(HACSB) FY25 budget.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

HACSB’s ACOP outlines the adopted policies that govern the Public Housing program. This 

program provides rental subsidies for low-income families. The ACOP is required of all housing 
authorities administering the Public Housing program and is reviewed and updated as needed to 
maintain compliance with Public and Indian Housing Notices (PIH), Federal Register Notices as 
issued by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and 
HACSB’s Moving to Work (MTW) activities.  
 
The primary reasons for revising the ACOP are to incorporate new definitions and income 
exclusions under the Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act of 2016 (HOTMA) required 
under the recent HUD guidance, revisions to the subsidy standard policy and changes to the 
Moving to Work activities in the 2025 Moving to Work Annual Plan. Other revisions have been 
made throughout the Administrative Plan to promote consistent application of policies and 
procedures. Since the ACOP is continuously reviewed for compliance and efficiency, HACSB staff 
take the opportunity to make minor changes when material changes are brought to the board. 
Attached is a table summarizing the proposed revision along with the corresponding sections from 
the ACOP with the redline changes.  
 
To ensure alignment with HUD regulations and to promote program efficiency, it is recommended 
the Board adopt the resolution to approve the proposed changes to the ACOP. 
 

3



Revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy Governing the Housing Authority 
of the County of San Bernardino’s Public Housing Program 
April 8, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on March 6, 2025. 

4



  

HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2025-208 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO APPROVING REVISIONS TO THE ADMISSIONS AND 

CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY GOVERNING THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 
OF SAN BERNARDINO’S RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) is required to 

maintain an Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy which outlines regulations and policies 
necessary to administer the Public Housing program on behalf of the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

 
WHEREAS, HUD requires public housing agencies to amend their Admissions and Continued 

Occupancy Policy to incorporate changes and define policy relative to administration of the Public 
Housing program; and 

 
WHEREAS, HACSB desires to amend its policies and procedures to incorporate new HUD 

regulations as well as revise language in other sections. 
 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Board of Commissioners finds that all of the facts set forth in the Recitals are true 
and correct, and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the proposed revisions to the 
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy governing the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino’s rental assistance programs, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by 
reference herein. 
  
Section 3.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, by the following vote: 
 
                       AYES:  
 
                       NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:   

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, __________, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record 
of the action taken by the Board of Commissioners, by vote of the members present, as the same 
appears in the Official Minutes of said Board at its meeting of Tuesday, April 8,  2025. 
 

5



  

 
   ___________________________  
     Secretary 

6



1 

 Summary of Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy Changes 

Section Topic Change 

1.6 Rules and Regulations Adds language and updates concerning Housing Opportunity 
through Modernization Act (HOTMA) implementation   

1.8 Reasonable Accommodations 
Policies and Procedures  

Adds language permitting the Housing Authority to re-verify 
the need for a reasonable accommodation under certain 
circumstances  

2.2.7 Foster Children and Foster 
Adults  

Updates HUD definition of foster child and foster adult 

5.1.7.1 Income and Rent 
Determinations -Periodic 
Payments  

Implements unearned income definition changes under 
HOTMA as provided in rent HUD guidance 

5.1.7.5 Income and Rent 
Determinations -Payments in 
Lieu of Earnings  

Implements unearned income definition changes under 
HOTMA as provided in rent HUD guidance 

5.1.4 Excluded Income Implements new income exclusions per recent HUD 
guidance 

6.3.5 Student Financial Assistance- Implements new income exclusions per recent HUD 
guidance 

5.1.6.8 Withdrawal of Cash or 
Liquidation of Investment 

Implements new unearned income changes under HOTMA 
as provided in the recent HUD guidance 

5.1.6.11.5 Retirement Accounts Updated treatment of retirement account distributions based 
on the latest HUD guidance. However, this section, which 
refers to new HOTMA asset inclusions/exclusions is not yet 
implemented  

5.3.2.1 Calculation of Baseline for 
Streamlined Lease Assistance 
Programs 

Updates section to correct baseline income to the baseline 
TTP to align with the MTW Plan 

5.3.4 Hardship Exemption Criteria for 
Streamlined Lease Assistance 
Programs 

Clarifies that the effective date of the hardship is the first of 
the month following receipt of the request consistent with the 
2025 MTW Plan 

13.4.2.1 Privacy Act Requirements- 
Revocation of Consent Form 

Implements HOTMA termination policy for revocation of the 
HUD-9886-A consent form as HUD is now requiring 
collection of the new form 

7



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024 March 2025 

   

Chapter 1: HACSB ACOP Introduction   

Page 1-14   

   

families will transition to the applicable Streamlined Assistance program at their 

next regularly scheduled recertification.   

1.6 Rules and Regulations   

This ACOP is set forth to define the Housing Authority’s local policies for operation of the 

housing programs in the context of Federal laws and regulations. All issues related to the 

affordable program not addressed in this document are governed by the HACSB’s MTW 

Agreement, MTW Plans, federal regulations, HUD memos, notices and guidelines, state 

and local laws, and other applicable laws.  Applicable regulations include:   

• 24 CFR Part 5: General Program Requirements   

• 24 CFR Part 8: Nondiscrimination   

• 24 CFR Part 35: Lead-Based Paint   

• 24 CFR Part 902: Public Housing Assessment System   

• 24 CFR Part 903: Public Housing Agency Plans   

• 24 CFR Part 945: Designated Housing   

• 24 CFR Part 960: Admission and Occupancy Policies   

• 24 CFR Part 965: HACSB-Owned or Leased Projects – General Provisions   

• 24 CFR Part 966: Lease and Grievance Procedures   

 

On February 14, 2023, HUD published the final rule of the Housing Opportunity Through 

Modernization Act of 2016 (HOTMA) implementing sections 102, 103 and 104 of 

HOTMA. The final rule was effective January 1, 2024. However, housing authorities 

were afforded one year to transition to the new HOTMA rules. HUD later extended 

implementation of some parts of section 102 and 104 of HOTMA until further notice. The 

timing of implementation is contingent upon HUD completing necessary changes to 

reporting systems.  

 

The HOTMA sections in this plan were adopted in conjunction with the agency’s MTW 

Annual Plan and prior to the establishment of a transition date. Therefore, HOTMA 

provisions are identified throughout this Plan as being “effective 10/1/24 or as soon as 

practicable thereafter. “Sections with the 10/1/24 HOTMA effective date are on hold until 

8



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024 March 2025   

   

Chapter 1: HACSB ACOP Introduction   

Page 1-15   

   

an implementation date is determined. All HOTMA policies and rules will be 

implemented at the same time unless otherwise specified.   

 

   

1.7 Fair Housing Policy [24 CFR §982.54(d)(6)]   

The Housing Authority is committed to nondiscrimination in housing and does not 

discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, familial status, 

and disability. The Housing Authority complies with all federal, state, and local 

nondiscrimination laws, and with rules and regulations governing fair housing and equal 

opportunity in housing and employment, including:   

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964   

• Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (as amended by the Community 

Development Act of 1974 and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988)   

• Executive Order 11063    

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973   

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975   

• Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (to the extent that it applies, otherwise 

Section 504 and the Fair Housing Amendments govern)   

• Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013)   

• The Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation 

or Gender Identity Final Rule, published in the Federal Register February 3, 2012   

• Any applicable state laws or local ordinances and any legislation protecting 

individual rights of residents, applicants, or staff that may subsequently be enacted    

   

When more than one civil rights law applies to a situation, the laws will be read and 

applied together.    

   

The Housing Authority shall not deny any family or individual the opportunity to apply for 

or receive assistance under the program on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, creed, 

9



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024 March 2025   

   

Chapter 1: HACSB ACOP Introduction   

Page 1-17   

   

all families, including providing reasonable accommodations to persons with disabilities. 

Fair housing signage is posted throughout the Housing Authority’s office/s, including in 

the lobby and interview rooms and the equal opportunity logo will be used on all outreach 

materials. Staff will attend local fair housing update training sponsored by HUD and other 

local organizations to keep current with new developments and//or regulations.   

   

Except as otherwise provided in 24 CFR 8.21(c)(1), 8.24(a), 8.25, and 8.31, no individual 

with disabilities shall be denied the benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or 

otherwise be subjected to discrimination because the Housing Authority’s facilities are 

inaccessible to or unusable by persons with disabilities. Posters and housing information 

are displayed in locations throughout the Housing Authority’s office in such a manner as 

to be easily readable from a wheelchair.   

   

In order to provide accessibility for persons who are deaf, hard-of-hearing or hearing or 

speech impaired, the Housing Authority utilizes the national 711 telecommunications relay 

service.   

1.8 Reasonable Accommodations Policies and Procedures [24 CFR 8.24]   

The Housing Authority’s policies and practices are designed to provide assurances that 

all persons with disabilities will be provided reasonable accommodation so that they may 

fully access and utilize the housing program and related services. The availability of 

specific accommodations will be made known by including notices on Housing Authority 

forms and letters to all families.   

   

The Housing Authority will make a reasonable accommodation or modification for 

individuals with disabilities when necessary to ensure equal access to HACSB’s property 

and property amenities, programs, services and activities.  Reasonable modifications 

include changes to a building, grounds or an individual apartment and reasonable 

accommodations include changes to policies, programs, services and procedures.  

HACSB will provide accommodations or modifications as requested unless doing so is 

unreasonable.  A request is unreasonable if it is structurally infeasible, would result in a 

fundamental alteration in the nature of a HACSB program, or would result in an undue 

financial and administrative burden.  If a request is unreasonable, HACSB will work with 

the individual to try to accommodate his or her needs.   

10



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024 March 2025 

   

Chapter 1: HACSB ACOP Introduction   

Page 1-18   

   

   

An individual with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation at any time 

during the application process or participation in the affordable housing program. 

Individuals may submit their reasonable accommodation request(s) in writing, orally, or 

by any other equally effective means of communication. However, Housing Authority will 

ensure that all reasonable accommodation requests are put in written form.    

 

Within twenty (20) business days of receipt, the HACSB will notify the individual, in writing, 

if additional information or documentation is needed and a reply date for the submission 

of the required documentation. This notification letter may also request the completion 

and submittal of additional forms.   

   

HACSB may request additional documentation in order to verify the extent of an 

individual’s functional limitations and whether the requested accommodation is 

substantially related to the functional limitations of the disability.  In addition, HACSB may 

request that the individual provide suggested reasonable accommodations. However, 

HACSB will not require individuals to disclose confidential medical records in order to 

verify a disability.  In addition, HACSB will not require specific details regarding the 

disability.  HACSB will only request documentation to confirm the disability-related 

need(s) for the requested accommodation(s).  HACSB may not require the individual to 

disclose the specific disability(ies) or the nature or extent of the individual’s disability(ies).   

   

Unless a disability is already known by the Housing Authority or readily apparent, a 

knowledgeable professional must provide verification of an individual’s disability and the 

need for the requested accommodation. Knowledgeable professionals include, but are 

not limited to (1) physician; (2) licensed health professional; (3) professional representing 

a social service agency; or (4) disability agency or clinic.   

   

Within thirty (30) business days of receipt of the request and, if necessary, all supporting 

documentation, HACSB will provide written notification to the individual of its decision to 

approve or deny the request(s).  If HACSB approves the accommodation, the individual 

will be notified of the projected date for implementation. If HACSB denies the 

accommodation, the individual will be notified of the reasons for denial.  In addition, the 

notification of the denial will also provide information regarding their right to appeal.  

11



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024 March 2025   

   

Chapter 1: HACSB ACOP Introduction   

Page 1-19   

   

If a request for accommodation is denied, individuals may file a request for an appeal with 

the Reasonable Accommodation Review Committee for evaluation and final decision.   

At its discretion, the Housing Authority may request that an applicant or participant re-

verify the continued need for an approved reasonable accommodation due to a change 

in circumstances or non-use of an approved accommodation.  

1.9 Program Accessibility [24 CFR 8.6]   

HUD regulations require the Housing Authority ensure that persons with disabilities 

related to hearing and vision have reasonable access to the Housing Authority's programs 

and services.    

   

At the initial point of contact with each applicant, the Housing Authority shall inform all 

applicants of alternative forms of communication that can be used other than plain 

language paperwork.  To meet the needs of persons with hearing or speech impairments, 

the Housing Authority utilizes the national 711 telecommunications relay service.     

   

To meet the needs of persons with vision impairments, large-print and audio versions of 

key program documents will be made available upon request. When visual aids are used 

in public meetings or presentations, or in meetings with HACSB staff, one-on-one 

assistance will be provided upon request.   

   

Additional examples of alternative forms of communication are sign language 

interpreters; having material explained orally by staff; or having a third party 

representative (a friend, relative or advocate, named by the applicant) to receive, interpret 

and explain housing materials and be present at all meetings.     

1.10 Translation of Documents   

The Housing Authority acknowledges the importance of serving Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) persons and adopted a Language Access Plan to ensure its programs 

and services are accessible to persons with LEP. In accordance with Federal guidelines, 

the Housing Authority will make reasonable efforts as appropriate and in consideration of 

cost and availability of resources to provide language assistance for its LEP residents, 

applicants, and/or persons eligible for Housing Authority programs. A copy of the 

12



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

Chapter 2: Eligibility, Denial of Admission and Informal Reviews   

Page 2-9   

 

of the affordable housing unit more than 51 percent of the time, are not subject to the time 

limitations of guests as described above.   

   

Guests who represent the unit address as their residence address for receipt of benefits 

or other purposes will be considered unauthorized occupants. In addition, guests who 

remain in the unit beyond the allowable time limit will be considered unauthorized 

occupants, and their presence constitutes violation of the lease.   

   

2.2.7 Foster Children and Foster Adults [24 CFR 5.6039]   

A foster child or foster adult may be allowed to reside in the unit if their presence would 

not result in a violation of occupancy standards.  Foster adults are usually persons with 

disabilities, unrelated to the resident family, who are unable to live alone.  The term foster 

child is not specifically defined by HUD regulations.    

 

Children that are temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster 

care are discussed later in this chapter. 

   

A foster child is defined as a member of the household who meets the definition of a foster 

child under State law. In general, a foster child is placed with the family by an authorized 

placement agency (e.g., public child welfare agency) or by judgment, decree, or other 

order of any court of competent jurisdiction.   

A foster adult is defined as a member of the household who is 18 years of age or older 

and meets the definition of a foster adult under State law. In general, a foster adult is a 

person who is 18 years of age or older, is unable to live independently due to a debilitating 

physical or mental condition and is placed with the family by an authorized placement 

agency or by judgment, decree, or other order of any court of competent jurisdiction. A 

foster child is a child that is in the legal guardianship or custody of a state, county, or 

private adoption or foster care agency, yet is cared for by foster parents in their own 

homes, under some kind of short-term or long-term foster care arrangement with the 

custodial agency. A foster child or foster adult may be allowed to reside in the unit if their 

presence would not result in a violation of occupancy standards.   

   
5 HACSB’s MTW Activity 5: Simplified Income Determination includes foster children and adults as family 

members 

13



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

   

Chapter 2: Eligibility, Denial of Admission and Informal Reviews   

Page 2-10   

   

Children that are temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care 

are discussed later in this chapter. .5   

 

For post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/24 or as soon as practicable thereafter:  

A foster child is defined as a member of the household who meets the definition of a foster 

child under State law. In general, a foster child is placed with the family by an authorized 

placement agency (e.g., public child welfare agency) or by judgment, decree, or other 

order of any court of competent jurisdiction.   

A foster adult is defined as a member of the household who is 18 years of age or older 

and meets the definition of a foster adult under State law. In general, a foster adult is a 

person who is 18 years of age or older, is unable to live independently due to a debilitating  

  
5 HACSB’s MTW Activity 5: Simplified Income Determination includes foster children and adults as family 

members.   

 

   

Chapter 2: Eligibility, Denial of Admission and Informal Reviews   

Page 2-7   

   

physical or mental condition and is placed with the family by an authorized placement 

agency or by judgment, decree, or other order of any court of competent jurisdiction.  

2.2.8 Live-In Aide   

A family may include a live-in aide if the live-in aide meets the following stipulations:   

• Is determined by the Housing Authority to be essential to the care and well-being 

of an elderly person or a person with the disability;   

• Is not obligated for the support of the person(s);   

• Would not be living in the unit except to provide care for the person(s); and    

14



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-5   

   

For persons who regularly receive bonuses or commissions, the HACSB will verify and 

then average amounts received for the two years preceding admission or reexamination. 

If only a one-year history is available, the HACSB will use the prior year amounts. In either 

case the family may provide, and the HACSB will consider, a credible justification for not 

using this history to anticipate future bonuses or commissions. If a new employee has not 

yet received any bonuses or commissions, the HACSB will count only the amount 

estimated by the employer. The file will be documented appropriately.   

5.1.3.2 Some Types of Military Pay [24 CFR 5.609(b)(8)]   

All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces are counted 

except for the special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed 

to hostile fire.   

5.1.4 Types of Earned Income Not Counted in Annual IncomeExcluded Income [24 

CFR 5.609(b)]     

This section describes the types of earned income that are not included in annual income.    

15



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-6   

 

Nonrecurring Income [24 CFR 5.609 (c) 9]   

  

For post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable thereafter actions 

effective on or after 7/1/2025:  

The following income sources are excluded from the calculation of annual income:  

• Nonrecurring income, which is income that was received in the previous year that 

will not be repeated in the coming year. Income received as an independent 

contractor, day laborer, or seasonal worker or through a temporary staffing 

agency is not excluded from income even if the amount, source, and date of the 

income varies. Income that has a discrete end date and will not be repeated 

beyond the coming year will be excluded from the family’s annual income as 

nonrecurring income. This does not include unemployment income and other 

types of periodic payments that are received at regular intervals for a period of 

greater than one year or that can be extended. Examples of non-recurring 

income include U.S. Census Bureau employment income lasting no longer than 

180 days, direct federal or state payments for economic stimulus or recovery, tax 

credits or refunds, guaranteed income program or research stipend that will end 

before the next reexamination, or lump sum additions to net family assets, such 

as lottery winnings.  

• Children’s Earnings [24 CFR 5.609  1]   

• Earned income of children under the age of 18 years  

• Income of a live-aid, foster child, or foster adult 

• Amounts received under a resident service stipend. A resident service stipend is 

a modest amount (not to exceed $200 per individual per month) received by a 

resident for performing a service for the Housing Authority or owner, on a part-

time basis, that enhances the quality of life in the development. No resident may 

receive more than one such stipend during the same period of time.    

• Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from 

participation in training programs funded by HUD or in a qualifying federal, state 

or local employment training programs (including training programs not affiliated 

with a local government) and training of a family member as resident 

management. Amounts excluded by this provision must be received under 

16



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-7   

   

employment training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives and are 

excluded only for the period during which the family member participates in the 

training program.    

 Employment income earned by children (including foster children) under the age 

of 18 years. is not included in annual income.    

• Earned Income of Full-Time Students [24 CFR 5.609(c)(11) and HCV GB, p. 

529]14   

Earnings for each full-time student 18 years old or older (except for the head, spouse, or 

co-head) are not counted. To be considered “full-time,” a student must be considered 

“fulltime” by an educational institution with a degree or certificate program.    

• Income of a Live-In Aide, Foster Child or Foster Adult [24 CFR 5.609(c)(5)]   

• Income earned by a live-in aide, foster child or foster adult.   

• Income Earned Under Certain Federal Programs [24 CFR 5.609(c)17]    

  

  
14 HACSB’s MTW Activity 5: Simplified Income Determination excludes all earned income from Full-Time 

Students.   

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-5   

   

• Resident Service Stipend [24 CFR 5.600(c)8(iv)]   

Amounts received under a resident service stipend are not included in annual income. A 

resident service stipend is a modest amount (not to exceed $200 per individual per month) 

received by a resident for performing a service for the HACSB, on a part-time basis, that 

enhances the quality of life in the community. Such services may include, but are not 

limited to, fire patrol, hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, resident initiatives coordination, 

and serving as a member of the HACSB’s governing board. No resident may receive more 

than one such stipend during the same period of time.    

• State and Local Employment Training Program [24 CFR 5.609(c)(8)(v)] 

Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from participation in 

qualifying state or local employment training programs (including training programs not 

17



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-8   

   

affiliated with a local government) and training of a family member as resident 

management staff are excluded from annual income. Amounts excluded by this provision 

must be received under employment training programs with clearly defined goals and 

objectives and are excluded only for the period during which the family member 

participates in the training program.    

   

The HACSB defines training program as “a learning process with goals and objectives, 

generally having a variety of components, and taking place in a series of sessions over a 

period of time. It is designed to lead to a higher level of proficiency, and it enhances the 

individual’s ability to obtain employment. It may have performance standards to measure 

proficiency. Training may include, but is not limited to: (1) classroom training in a specific 

occupational skill, (2) on-the-job training with wages subsidized by the program, or (3) 

basic education” [expired Notice PIH 98-2, p. 3].   

   

• \Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from 

participation in training programs funded by HUD or in a qualifying federal, state, 

or local employment training programs (including training programs not affiliated 

with a local government) and training of a family member as resident management 

staff. Amounts excluded by this provision must be received under employment 

training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives and are excluded only 

for the period during which the family member participates in the training program.  

•  

• Income earned in employment and training programs under section 134 of the 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), including: workforce 

investment activities for adults and workers dislocated as a result of permanent 

closure or mass layoff at a plant, facility or enterprise or a natural disaster that 

results in mass job dislocation, in order to assist such adults or workers in obtaining 

reemployment as soon as possible  

• Amounts paid by a state agency to a family with a member of the family who has 

a disability and is living at home to offset the cost of services and equipment 

needed to keep the disabled family member at home [24 CFR 5.609(c)(16)]   

18



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-9   

   

• Deferred periodic payments of Supplemental Security Income, Social Security 

income or VA disability benefits that are received in a lump sum or prospective 

monthly amounts  

• Payments made through state Medicaid-managed care system, other state agency 

or authorized entity to allow a family member with a disability to live at home, such 

as In Home Supportive Services. To be eligible for the exclusion, both the person 

providing the care and the person who has the disability must be family members 

(not household members) and must live in the same assisted household. The 

exclusion does not apply to income earned by the family for other caregiving 

services provided to individuals outside of the assisted household [Notice PIH 

2023-27]  

• Any distribution of principal or corpus of an irrevocable trust or trust outside the 

control of the family  

• Any distribution of income of an irrevocable trust or trust outside the control of the 

family that is used to pay for health and medical care expenses for a minor  

• Any distribution from a revocable trust or trust under the control of the family 

(except income earned by the trust will be counted as asset income10 and any 

distribution of interest earned on the trust principal will be counted as income)  

• Insurance payments and settlements for personal or property losses, including but 

not limited to payments through health insurance, motor vehicle insurance, and 

worker’s compensation. However, periodic payments paid at regular intervals for a 

period of greater than one year that are received in lieu of wages for workers’ 

compensation continue to be included in annual income [Notice PIH 2023-27]  

• Income earned by government contributions to or distributions from ‘baby bond’ 

accounts created, authorized or funded by federal, state or local government  

• Reimbursement of health and medical care expenses   

• Payments related to aid and attendance for veterans under 38 U.S.C. 1521  

  
• Amounts received by participants in other publicly assisted programs which are 

specifically for or in reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred and which 

are made solely to allow participation in a specific program   

 
10 Refer to the Assets and Asset Income section for applicability by program.  

   

19



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-10   

   

• Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited 

time for purposes of Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because 

they are set aside for use under a Plan to Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS)   

• Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under 

the laws of that government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era   

• Refunds or rebates on property taxes paid on the dwelling unit   

• Loan proceeds disbursed by a lender to a borrower or third party (e.g., educational 

institution or car dealership)  

• Payment received by tribal members from claims relating to the mismanagement 

of assets held in trust by the United States  

• Civil rights settlements or judgments, including settlements or judgments for back 

pay  

• Amounts recovered in a civil action or settlement based on malpractice, negligence 

and other breach of duty claim resulting in a family member becoming disabled  

• Income earned on amounts placed in a family’s Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) 

escrow account  

• Replacement housing “gap” payments to offset increased rent and utility costs to 

families displaced from one federally subsidized unit to another federally 

subsidized unit  

• Amounts specifically excluded by any other federal statute including: [FR Notice  

1/31/2024]  

• The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household under the Food Stamp 

Act of 1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b)). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• Payments, including for supportive services and reimbursement of out-ofpocket 

expenses, for volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 

U.S.C. 5044(f)(1), 5058), except that the exclusion shall not apply in the case of 

such payments when the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation for National 

and Community Services appointed under 42 U.S.C. 12651c determines 

otherwise. This exclusion also applies to assets  

• Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C.  

1626c). This exclusion also applies to assets  

20



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

•  

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-11   

   

Income derived from certain submarginal land of the United States that is held 

in trust for certain Indian tribes (25 U.S.C. 459e). This exclusion also applies to 

assets  

• Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and Human 

Services’ Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 8624(f)). This 

exclusion also applies to assets  

• Income derived from the disposition of funds to the Grand River Band of Ottawa 

Indians (Pub. L. 94-540, 90 Stat. 2503-04). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds awarded by 

the Indian Claims Commission or the U. S. Claims Court, the interests of individual 

Indians in trust or restricted lands, including the first $2,000 per year of income 

received by individual Indians from funds derived from interests held in such trust 

or restricted lands. This exclusion does not include proceeds of gaming operations 

regulated by the Commission (25 U.S.C. 1407-1408). This exclusion also applies 

to assets  

• Amounts of student financial assistance funded under Title IV of the Higher 

Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1070), including awards under federal 

workstudywork-study programs or under the Bureau of Indian Affairs student 

assistance programs (20 U.S.C. 1087uu). For Section 8 programs only (42 U.S.C. 

1437f), any financial assistance in excess of amounts received by an individual for 

tuition and any other required fees and charges under the Higher Education Act of 

1965 (20 U.S.C. 1001 et seq.) from private sources, or an institution of higher 

education (as defined under the Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1002)), 

shall not be considered income to that individual if the individual is over the age of 

23 with dependent children  

• Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans 

Act of 1985 (42 U.S.C. 3056(f))  

• Payments received on or after January 1, 1989, from the Agent Orange Settlement 

Fund or any other fund established pursuant to the settlement in Re Agent-product 

liability litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 (E.D.N.Y.). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (25  

21



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

•  

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-12   

   

U.S.C. 1721). This exclusion also applies to assets  

The value of any childcare provided or arranged (or any amount received as 

payment for such care or reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under 

the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858q)  

• Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or after January 

1, 1991 (26 U.S.C. 32(j)). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• The amount of any refund (or advance payment with respect to a refundable 

credit) issued under the Internal Revenue Code is excluded from income and 

assets for a period of 12 months from receipt  

• Payments by the Indian Claims Commission to the Confederated Tribes and 

Bands of Yakima Indian Nation or the Apache Tribe of Mescalero Reservation 

(Pub. L. 95-433). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• Allowances, earnings and payments to AmeriCorps participants under the 

National and Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12637(d))  

• Any allowance paid to children of Vietnam veterans born with spina bifida (38 

U.S.C. 1802-05), children of women Vietnam veterans born with certain birth 

defects (38 U.S.C. 1811-16), and children of certain Korean and Thailand 

service veterans born with spina bifida (38 U.S.C. 1821-22). This exclusion also 

applies to assets  

• Any amount of crime victim compensation (under the Victims of Crime Act) 

received through crime victim assistance (or payment or reimbursement of the 

cost of such assistance) as determined under the Victims of Crime Act because 

of the commission of a crime against the applicant under the Victims of Crime 

Act (42 U.S.C. 10602). This exclusion also applies to assets  

• Allowances, earnings, and payments to individuals participating in programs 

under the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 reauthorized as the Workforce 

Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (29 U.S.C. 3214(a)(2)  

• Benefits under Section 1780 of the School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act of 

1966, including WIC. This exclusion also applies to assets  

22



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

•  

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-13   

   

• Payments, funds, or distributions authorized, established, or directed by the 

Seneca Nation Settlement Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-503 section 8(b)). This 

exclusion also applies to assets  

• A lump sum or periodic payment received by an individual Indian pursuant to 

the Class Action Settlement Agreement in the United States District Court case 

entitled Elouise Cobell et al. v. Ken Salazar et al, for a period of one year from 

the time of receipt of that payment. This exclusion also applies to assets 

•  Any amounts in an “individual development account” are excluded from assets 

and any assistance, benefit, or amounts earned by or provided to the individual 

development account are excluded from income, as provided by the Assets for 

Independence Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 604(h)(4))  

• Per capita payments made from the proceeds of Indian Tribal Trust Settlements 

listed in IRS Notice 2013-1 and 2013-55 must be excluded from annual income 

unless the per capita payments exceed the amount of the original Tribal Trust 

Settlement proceeds and are made from a Tribe’s private bank account in which 

the Tribe has deposited the settlement proceeds. Such amounts received in 

excess of the Tribal Trust Settlement are included in the gross income of the 

members of the tribe receiving the per capita payments as described in IRS 

Notice 2013-1. The first $2,000 of per capita payments are also excluded from 

assets unless the per capita payments exceed the amount of the original Tribal 

Trust Settlement proceeds and are made from a Tribe’s private bank account 

in which the Tribe has deposited the settlement proceeds (25 U.S.C. 117b(a), 

25 U.S.C. 1407)  

• Federal assistance for a major disaster or emergency received by individuals 

and families under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 

Assistance Act and comparable disaster assistance provided by States, local 

governments, and disaster assistance organization. This exclusion also applies 

to assets  

• Any amounts in an Achieving Better Life Experience (ABLE) account, 

distributions from and certain contributions from and certain contributions to an 

ABLE account established under the ABLE Act of 2014 (Pub. L. 113-295), as 

23



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

•  

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-14   

   

described in Notice PIH 2019-09/H 2019-06) or subsequent or superseding 

notice is excluded from income and assets  

• Assistance received by a household under the Emergency Rental Assistance 

Program pursuant to the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, and the 

American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. This exclusion also applies to assets  

  

 

In calculating the incremental difference, the HACSB will use as the pre-enrollment 

income the total annualized amount of the family member’s welfare assistance and 

earnings reported on the family’s most recently completed HUD-50058.   

End of participation in a training program must be reported in accordance with the 

HACSB's interim reporting requirements.   

24



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-21   

   

If the asset is a property for which a family receives rental income, the anticipated income 

is determined by annualizing the actual monthly rental amount received for the property; 

it is not based on the property’s  cash value. However, if the asset is a savings account, 

the anticipated income is determined by multiplying the market value of the account by 

the interest rate on the account.   

  

5.1.6.8 Withdrawal of Cash or Liquidation of Investments   

For post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable 

thereafteron or after 7/1/2025:  

  

Any regular withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment, such as a retirement 

account, will be included in income.   

  

For pre-HOTMA actions effective prior to the implementation of the post-HOTMA 

provisions abovebefore 7/1/2025:  

  

Any withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment will be included in income except to 

the extent that the withdrawal reimburses amounts invested by the family. For example, 

when a family member retires, the amount received by the family from a retirement plan 

is not counted as income until the family has received payments equal to the amount the 

family member deposited into the retirement fund.   

5.1.6.9 Jointly Owned Assets   

If an asset is owned by more than one person and any family member has unrestricted 

access to the asset, the Housing Authority will count the full value of the asset. A family 

member has unrestricted access to an asset when he or she can legally dispose of the 

asset without the consent of any of the other owners.   

   

If an asset is owned by more than one person, including a family member, but the family 

member does not have unrestricted access to the asset, the Housing Authority will prorate 

the asset according to the percentage of ownership. If no percentage is specified or 

provided for by state or local law, the Housing Authority will prorate the asset evenly 

among all owners.    

25



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-25   

   

rent or other payment for the use of the property. If the property generates no income, 

actual anticipated income from the asset will be zero.   

   

In the case of a mortgage or deed of trust held by a family member, the outstanding 

balance (unpaid principal) is the cash value of the asset. The interest portion only of 

payments made to the family in accordance with the terms of the mortgage or deed of 

trust is counted as anticipated asset income.   

   

In the case of capital investments owned jointly with others not living in a family’s unit, a 

prorated share of the property’s cash value will be counted as an asset unless the Housing 

Authority determines that the family receives no income from the property and is unable 

to sell or otherwise convert the asset to cash.   

5.1.6.11.4 Trusts Notice PIH 2023-27]  

If any member of a family has the right to withdraw the funds in a trust, the value of the 

trust is considered an asset. Any income earned as a result of investment of trust funds 

is counted as actual asset income, whether the income is paid to the family or deposited 

in the trust.   

   

In cases where a trust is not revocable by, or under the control of, any member of a family, 

the value of the trust fund is not considered an asset and any interest earned by the trust 

would not be considered income. For treatment of trust distributions refer to the annual 

income section of this Chapter.   

5.1.6.11.5 Retirement Accounts [HCV GB, p.5-26] 24 CFR 5.603(b), 24 CFR  

5.609(b)]  

For post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable thereafter:  

The value of retirement accounts recognized by the IRS, such as IRA, 401(k), 401(b), and 

retirement plans for self-employed individuals, are excluded from assets and any asset 

income derived from these plans is also excluded from income. However, any distribution 

of periodic payments from these accounts shall be included as income at the time they 

are received by the family.  

  

26



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-26   

   

For pre-HOTMA actions effective prior to the implementation of the post-HOTMA 

provisions above:  

  

In order to correctly include or exclude as an asset any amount held in a company 

retirement or pension account by an employed person, the Housing Authority must know 

whether the money is accessible before retirement.   

   

While a family member is employed, only the amount the family member can withdraw 

without retiring or terminating employment is counted as an asset.   

   

After a family member retires or terminates employment, any amount distributed to the 

family member is counted as a periodic payment or a lump-sum receipt, as appropriate., 

except to the extent that it represents funds invested in the account by the family member. 

The balance in the account is counted as an asset only if it remains accessible to the 

family member.   

   

IRA, Keogh, and similar retirement savings accounts are counted as assets even though 

early withdrawal would result in a penalty.   

5.1.6.11.6 Personal Property [24 CFR 5.603(b)   

For post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable thereafter: 

Necessary items of personal property are excluded from assets.   

  

Non-necessary items of personal property, such as checking/savings accounts, 

recreational boat, art, coin collection, or vintage baseball cards, having a combined total 

value exceeding $50,000 are counted as assets. If the value of the non-necessary items 

of personal property cannot be verified, a self-certification will be accepted.  

  

Examples of necessary and non-necessary personal property for post-HOTMA actions 

effective 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable thereafter:  

Necessary Personal Property  Non-necessary Personal Property  

Car(s)/vehicle(s) that a family relies on for 

transportation for personal or business use  
Recreational car/vehicle not needed for day-to-day 

transportation, such as camper bans, travel 

trailers, all terrain vehicles  

27



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024 March 2025

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-28   

   

may include clothing, furniture, household furnishings, jewelry, and vehicles, including 

those specially equipped for persons with disabilities.   

5.1.6.10.7 Life Insurance [HCV GB, p.5-26]   

The cash value of a life insurance policy available to a family member before death, such 

as a whole life or universal life policy, is included in the calculation of the value of the 

family’s assets. The cash value is the surrender value. If such a policy earns dividends or 

interest that the family could elect to receive, the anticipated amount of dividends or 

interest is counted as income from the asset whether or not the family actually receives 

it.    

5.1.7 Periodic Payments [24 CFR 5.609]  

Periodic payments are forms of income received on a regular basis. HUD regulations 

specify periodic payments that are and are not included in annual income.    

5.1.7.1 Periodic Payments Included in Annual Income   

Periodic Payments Included in Annual Income   

• Periodic payments from sources such as social security, unemployment and 

welfare assistance, annuities, insurance policies, retirement funds, and pensions. 

For pre-HOTMA actions, For actions effective prior to 7/1/2025, periodic payments 

from retirement accounts, annuities, and similar forms of investments are counted 

only after they exceed the amount contributed by the family.   

• Disability or death benefits and lottery receipts paid periodically, rather than in a 

single lump sum.   

5.1.7.2 Lump-Sum Payments for the Delayed Start of a Periodic Payment   

A lump sum received as a result of a retirement account distribution, such as a Required 

Minimum Distribution, is counted as income.   

  

Most lump sums received as a result of delays in processing periodic payments, such as 

unemployment or welfare assistance, are counted as income. However, lump-sum from 

Social Security and Department of Veterans Affairs disability benefits are excluded, are 

excluded, and these are discussed under the excluded income section in this Chapter   

28



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-29   

   

5.1.7.3 Treatment of Overpayment Deductions from Social Security Benefits   

When the Social Security Administration (SSA) overpays an individual, resulting in a 

withholding or deduction from his or her benefit amount until the overpayment is paid in 

full, HACSB will use the reduced benefit amount after deducting only the amount of the 

overpayment withholding from the gross benefit amount [Notice PIH 2012-10].    

  

  

5.1.7.4 Periodic Payments Excluded from Annual Income   

• Amounts received under the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 

U.S.C. 1626(c)) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]   

• Amounts received under the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 1990 

(42 U.S.C. 9858q) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]   

• Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) refund payments (26 U.S.C. 32(j)) [24 CFR 

5.609(c)(17)]. Note: EITC may be paid periodically if the family elects to receive 

the amount due as part of payroll payments from an employer.   

• Lump sums received as a result of delays in processing Social Security and SSI 

payments (see section 6-I.J.) [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4)].    

5.1.7.5 Payments in Lieu of Earnings [  

For post-HOTMA actions effective on or after 10/1/2024 7/1/2025. or as soon as 

practicable thereafter:  

Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment, worker’s compensation, disability 

compensation, and severance pay, are counted as income if they are received either in 

the form of periodic payments or in the form of a lump-sum amount or prospective monthly 

amounts for the delayed start of a periodic payment. If payment in full the full amount is 

received in a one-time lump sum (as a settlement, for instance), the payment is treated 

as a lump-sum receipt and excluded from income.  

  

  

  

29



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024 March 2025

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-30   

   

For pre-HOTMA actions effective prior to the enactment of post-HOTMA provisions above 

before 7/1/25:  

   

Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, 

worker’s compensation, and severance pay, are counted as income if they are received 

either in the form of periodic payments or in the form of a lump-sum amount or prospective 

monthly amounts for the delayed start of a periodic payment. If they are received in a one-

time lump sum (as a settlement, for instance), they are treated as lump-sum receipts.    

30



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-39   

 

5.3.2.1 Calculation of Baseline for Streamlined Lease Assistance Programs The 

family’s baseline income TTP is set at admission to the program andwhich is based on 

the annual income calculation policies and income inclusions/exclusions in effect at the 

time that the baseline TTP was setmade. The baseline income TTP will only be reset if 

the family qualifies for a permanent hardship exemption, is transferred from one program 

to another, such as from SLA to TLA, or as an income correction due to the family’s failure 

to report income at admission.      

5.3.3 Streamlined Fixed Lease Assistance for Career-Focused Families Program   

The Housing Authority will calculate family rent by selecting the greatest of thirty-six 

percent (36%) of monthly gross income, the baseline rent, or the minimum rent.    

5.3.4 Hardship Exemption Criteria for Streamlined Lease Assistance Programs 

HACSB recognizes that under some circumstances, families may experience a hardship 

that makes it challenging to pay the applicable rent under the Streamlined Lease 

Assistance Program. Hardship exemption criteria have been developed for all families 

that see a significant increase in their portion as a direct result of the SLA calculation at 

initial implementation of the activity or experience certain expenses or losses of income 

while participating in the program.  In order for families to be eligible for a hardship 

exemption, they must make their request for a hardship exemption in writing and be in 

compliance with all program rules and regulations.  The request for hardship exemption 

must come no later than 60 days after the change in circumstances. Families also must 

provide all supporting documents regarding their case and all requests for hardship 

exemption will be reviewed by the Hardship Review Committee. After the committee has 

evaluated the family’s request, they will determine if the family qualifies for a temporary 

or permanent hardship exemption. If approved, the tenant rent portion change will be 

effective the first of the month following the receipt of the request. 37 

The following sections describe the types of hardship exemptions that may be granted. 

All non-elderly/non-disabled households approved for a temporary hardship exemption 

will be required to participate in the Career Development InitiativesFamily Empowerment 

Services case management activities.   

5.3.4.1 Permanent Hardship Exemptions   

A permanent hardship exemption may be approved for the following reasons:   

• the family experiences a death of a household member with income;   

31



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 5: Income and Rent Determinations   

Page 5-40   

   

• any income-earning member of the assisted family no longer remains in the unit;   

 

   

• An elderly or disabled household experiences a permanent loss of income.   

• Unforeseen and involuntary permanent loss of income for a family member under 

the age of 18.     

   

If a permanent hardship exemption has been approved, HACSB will reset the family’s 

previous highest rent share (the “baseline rent”) by recalculating the family’s income and 

applying the applicable rent percentage. For example, for families participating in the 

Streamlined Fixed Lease Assistance for Elderly/Disabled Families program, the new 

monthly income will be multiplied by twenty-four percent (24%) to determine the new 

monthly rent share. For families participating in the Streamlined Tiered Lease Assistance 

for Career-Focused Families program, the new monthly income will be multiplied by the 

most recent tiered rent percentage established at recertification to determine the new 

monthly rent share. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37 FY 2025 MTW Plan, Activity 22: Streamlined Lease Assistance describes the hardship review criteria 
and effective date. 

32



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 6: Verifications   

Page 6-14   

   

 

6.3.5 Student Financial Assistance   

 

Streamlined Lease Assistance  

The following full amount of student financial assistance is excluded from the calculation  

of annual income while the student is attending an institution of higher education as 

defined under section 102 of the Higher Education Act of 1965:.19  

  

For pre-HOTMA actions effective prior to the enactment of post-HOTMA provisions 

aboveactions effective on or after 7/1/2025:  

 

Certain student financial assistance is included in annual income. However, most student 

financial assistance is excluded from annual income. The regulation requiring the 

inclusion of certain student financial assistance applies only to students who satisfy all of 

the following conditions:  

• Any amount in or from, or any benefits, income, or distributions from any Coverdell 

educational savings account of or any qualified program under the IRS sections 

529 and 530. 

• Full amount of assistance received under section 479B of the Higher Education 

Act of 1965, such as Federal Pell Grants, Teach Grants, Federal Work-Study 

Programs, and Federal Perkins Loans.  

• Income earned in employment and training programs under section 134 of t he 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

• Student Loans  

• Other student financial assistance, such as a grant, scholarship, or other 

assistance amounts for the actual costs charged by the institute of higher 

education 

o Other student financial assistance exceeding the cost of tuition, books, 

supplies, fees or the cost of housing (for students who are not the head of  

 
19  HACSB’s FY2024 MTW Plan Activity 5: Simplified Income Determination adds all student financial 

assistance to the list of excluded income. This provision is for post-HOTMA actions effective 10/1/2024 or 

as soon as practicable thereafter.  

33



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

Chapter 6: Verifications   

Page 6-15   

   

household or spouse) if not living in the unit while attending school is 

counted as income.  

• They are enrolled in an institution of higher education, as defined under the 

Higher Education Act (HEA) of 1965.  

• They are seeking or receiving Housing Services program assistance on 

their own—that is, apart from their parents.  

• They are under twenty-four (24) years of age OR they have no dependent 

children.  

 For students who satisfy these three (3) conditions, any financial assistance 

in excess of tuition and any other required fees and charges received: 

(1) under the 1965 HEA, (2) from a private source, or (3) from an institution 

of higher education, as defined under the 1965 HEA, must be included in 

annual income.  

 To determine annual income in accordance with the above requirements, 

the Housing Authority will use the definitions of dependent child, institution 

of higher education, and parents in Chapter 4, along with the following 

definitions [FR 4/10/06, pp. 18148-18150]:  

1. Assistance under the Higher Education Act of 1965 includes Pell Grants, 

Federal Supplement Educational Opportunity Grants, Academic 

Achievement Incentive  

 Scholarships, and State Assistance under the Leveraging Educational 

Assistance  

   

 Partnership Program, the Robert G. Byrd Honors Scholarship Program, and 

Federal Work Study programs.  

2. Assistance from private sources means assistance from nongovernmental 

sources, including parents, guardians, and other persons not residing with 

the student in a Housing Services program assisted unit.  

o Tuition will have the meaning given this term by the institution of higher 

education in which the student is enrolled and will include any other fees 

and charges required by the institution for enrollment [FR 12/14/12, p. 

74497].  

 

 

34



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

 Revised: September 2024March 2025 

    

   

Chapter 6: Verifications   

Page 6-16   

   

For actions effective before 7/1/2025 

 

The following student financial assistance is excluded from the calculation or annual 

income while the student is attending an institution of higher education as defined under 

section 102 of the Higher Education Act of 1965: 

 

• Any amount in or from, or any benefits, income, or distributions from any Coverdell 

educational savings account of or any qualified program under the IRS sections 

529 and 530. 

• Full amount of assistance received under section 479B of the Higher Education 

Act of 1965, such as Federal Pell Grants, Teach Grants, Federal Work-Study 

Programs, and Federal Perkins Loans.  

• Student Loans  

• Other student financial assistance, such as a grant, scholarship, or other 

assistance amounts for the actual costs charged by the institute of higher 

education 

o Other student financial assistance exceeding the cost of tuition, books, 

supplies, fees or the cost of housing (for students who are not the head of  

household or spouse) if not living in the unit while attending school is 

counted as income.  

 

 

6.3.6 Assets and Assets Income  [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3) and 24 CFR 5.603(b)]  

Assets will be calculated using the policies in this Section. HUD requires that the Housing 

Authority include in annual income the income derived from assets, such as interest, 

dividends, and other net income of any kind from real or personal property. This section 

discusses how to calculate net family assets and how the income from various types of 

assets is determined. For most types of assets, the Housing Authority must determine the 

value of the asset in order to compute income from the asset. Therefore, for each asset 

type, this section discusses:  

• How the net family assets will be determined  

• How income from the asset will be calculated  

35



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025  

   

Chapter 13: Program Administration   

Page 13-9 

   

   

• Vital documents, including identification documents, birth certificates, social 

security cards, and immigration documents  

• Application for assistance  

• Family Obligations Statement/Voucher  

HUD-9886-A, Declaration of Citizenship/Lawful residency status and Debts Owed 

Form signed by all adult household members.  

13.4.2 Records Management   

All applicant and participant information will be kept in a secure location and access will 

be limited to authorized HACSB staff. HACSB staff will not discuss personal family 

information unless there is a business reason to do so. Inappropriate discussion of family 

information or improper disclosure of family information by staff will result in disciplinary 

action.   

13.4.2.1 Privacy Act Requirements [24 CFR 5.212 and Form-9886-A]   

The collection, maintenance, use, and dissemination of social security numbers (SSN), 

employer identification numbers (EIN), any information derived from these numbers, and 

income information of applicants and participants will be conducted, to the extent 

applicable, in compliance with the Privacy Act of 1974, and all other provisions of Federal, 

State, and local law.   

   

Applicants and participants, including all adults in the household, are required to sign a 

consent form, HUD-9886-A, Authorization for Release of Information/Privacy Act Notice.  

This form incorporates the Federal Privacy Act Statement and describes how the 

information collected using the form may be used, and under what conditions HUD or the 

HACSB may release the information collected.   

  

Effective for post-HOTMA actions on 10/1/2024 or as soon as practicable thereafter, if a 

member of the household revokes consent provided on the Form HUD-9886-A, the family 

will receive a pre-termination notice notifying the family that they will be terminated unless 

a new Form HUD-9886-A is signed within ten (10) days. If a new Form HUD-9886-A form 

is not signed by the deadline provided, the family’s participation will be terminated. 

36



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP  

Revised: September 2024March 2025  

   

Chapter 13: Program Administration Page 

13-10   

   

   

Further, the Housing Authority will notify the local HUD field office of the revocation of 

consent.   

   

13.4.2.2 Up-front Income Verification Records    

HACSB uses UIV data through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System and 

has adopted and follows specific security procedures to ensure that all EIV data is 

protected in accordance with Federal laws, regardless of the media on which the data is 

recorded (e.g. electronic, paper).    

   

13.4.2.3 Criminal Records [24 CFR 5.903(e), 24 CFR 5.903(g]   

The HACSB may only disclose the criminal conviction records which the HACSB receives 

from a law enforcement agency to officers or employees of the HACSB, or to authorized 

representatives of the HACSB who have a job-related need to have access to the 

information The HACSB must establish and implement a system of records management 

that ensures that any criminal record received by the HACSB from a law enforcement 

agency is maintained confidentially, not misused or improperly disseminated, and 

destroyed, once the purpose for which the record was requested has been accomplished, 

including expiration of the period for filing a challenge to the HACSB action without 

institution of a challenge or final disposition of any such litigation.   

   

The HACSB must establish and implement a system of records management that 

ensures that any sex offender registration information received by the HACSB from a 

State or local agency is maintained confidentially, not misused or improperly 

disseminated, and destroyed, once the purpose for which the record was requested has 

been accomplished, including expiration of the period for filing a challenge to the HACSB 

action without institution of a challenge or final disposition of any such litigation. This 

requirement does not apply to information that is public information, or is obtained by a 

HACSB other than under 24 CFR 5.905.   

   

13.4.2.4 Medical/Disability Records   

HACSB is not permitted to inquire about the nature or extent of a person’s disability. The 

HACSB may not inquire about a person’s diagnosis or details of treatment for a disability 

37



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 
April 08, 2025 

FROM 
MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   
           
SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Policy for the sale of single-family homes within the ownership structure of Housing Authority of 
the County of San Bernardino. 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 209 approving the policy for the sale of single-family homes within the 
ownership structure of Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) ..Body 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #2: To be known as a trusted provider of safe, dignified, and 
desirable homes and environments that enrich and add value to the community.  
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Any funds invested into the property will be recouped upon its sale through the proceeds. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) Homeownership Program 
Policy will establish the guidelines for the sale of single-family homes owned within the ownership 
structure of HACSB, ensuring a fair and transparent process.  
 
The policy prioritizes eligible clients based on their Homeownership Program entry date, their 
ability to meet the asking price through pre-approval and, when available, down payment 
assistance provided by third-party agencies. Additionally, the sale will be effectuated through the 
HUD Section 32 program, and the affordability covenant will determine the home price. The 
Homeownership Program is designed for clients who have completed the application process and 
received a Certificate of Eligibility. To qualify, clients must meet specific requirements, including 
income eligibility per the HACSB Administrative Plan, first-time homebuyer status, completion of 
an 8-hour HUD-approved Homebuyer Education Course, and pre-approval for a 30-year fixed 
mortgage loan. Additional criteria includes ensuring clients are financially prepared for 
homeownership and able to maintain long-term stability. 
 
The policy outlines a structured process for the sale of HACSB-owned single-family homes. When 
a property becomes available, eligible clients are notified and invited to express interest. Selection 
is based on the date of the Certificate of Eligibility, with priority given to those with the longest 
standing eligibility. The selected buyer must demonstrate their ability to meet the asking price and 
complete the purchase within established timelines. 
 
This new policy ensures transparency, fairness, and consistency in the home sale process while 
promoting sustainable homeownership. The policy also reinforces HACSB’s commitment to 

38



Policy for the sale of single-family homes within the ownership structure of Housing Authority of 
the County of San Bernardino. 
April 8, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

providing affordable housing pathways, helping families achieve long-term self-sufficiency and 
economic stability. 
  
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on March 21, 2025. 

 

39



  

HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2025-209 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO APPROVING A POLICY GOVERNING THE SALE OF HOUSING 

AUTHORITY-OWNED HOMES 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) is committed to 
ensuring the fair, transparent, and non-discriminatory sale of Housing Authority-owned homes in 
accordance with federal, state, and local regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, HACSB seeks to establish a policy that promotes equitable access to 

homeownership opportunities, particularly for the families it serves, while maintaining transparency and 
accountability in the disposition of its properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, HACSB desires to implement clear procedures that prevent discrimination, ensure 

fairness in the sales process, and create pathways to homeownership for the families it serves, 
supporting long-term housing stability and economic mobility. 

 
OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Board of Commissioners finds that all of the facts set forth in the Recitals are true 
and correct, and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  The Board of Commissioners hereby approves Policy Governing the Sale of HACSB 
Owned Homes, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference herein. 
  
Section 3.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, by the following vote: 
 
                       AYES:  
 
                       NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:   

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, __________, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record 
of the action taken by the Board of Commissioners, by vote of the members present, as the same 
appears in the Official Minutes of said Board at its meeting of Tuesday, March 17,  2025. 
 
 
   ___________________________  
     Secretary 

40



 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

SALE OF HACSB OWNED HOME POLICY 

 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure a fair and transparent process for the sale of 

single-family homes owned by the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino 

(HACSB), prioritizing clients based on their Homeownership Program entry date and 

their ability to meet the asking price. 

 

Eligibility 

Clients who have submitted Homeownership program applications and have received a 

Certificate of Eligibility are eligible to purchase HACSB owned single-family homes 

through HACSB’s Homeownership program.  Clients must meet all of the following 

requirements: 

1. be income eligible in accordance with the HACSB Administrative Plan,  

2. be in good standing with the HACSB,  

3. be a first-time homebuyer with no ownership interest in real estate at any time 

in the past three years, 

4. must invest a minimum of 1% of the down payment, not including closing 

costs, of their own funds, 

5. must occupy the home as their principal residence for a minimum of 5 years 

and cannot be occupied by tenants, 

6. must complete an 8-hour Homebuyer Education Course from a 

HUD-approved housing counseling agency 

(https://hud4.my.site.com/housingcounseling/s/?language=en_US) and 

provide a completion certificate to HACSB before close of escrow, 

7. be pre-approved by a lender for a 30-year fixed mortgage loan; cash purchases 

are not eligible, 

8. must not have more than $10,000 in liquid assets in your bank account after 

the close of escrow, and 

9. have no outstanding debts or violations of the HACSB’s Homeownership 

Assistance Program rules. 

 

Home Sale Process 

When an HACSB owned single family home becomes available for sale, HACSB will 

notify clients with a Certificate of Eligibility, via mail.  HACSB will provide all pertinent 

details, including the asking price.  Interested clients must submit an expression of 

interest within a specified timeframe, as indicated in the letter. The sale will be 

effectuated through the HUD Section 32 program and the affordability covenant will 

determine the home price.  The affordability covenant shall include, among other 

requirements, HACSB’s right to recapture some or all of the gains from appreciation and 

the below-market assistance provided to the household if they sell in the first five years. 

 

Selection Process 

Eligible clients will be prioritized based on the date of Certificate of Eligibility issuance, 

from the oldest to the newest.  HACSB will maintain a current list of Certificate of 

Eligibility holders, sorted by entry date.  The selected buyer must demonstrate their 

41



 

 

ability to meet the asking price of the home. This may include providing proof of 

financing, a mortgage pre-approval letter, or other relevant financial documentation.  

Once a buyer is selected, HACSB will present a formal offer to the client, outlining the 

terms and conditions of the sale. The client must sign a sale agreement and affordability 

covenant within a specified period to finalize the purchase and close escrow within 2 

months of selection. Failure to do so will result in the offer being extended to the next 

eligible client based on the entry date. 

42



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 08, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
..End 

Long-Term Lease Agreement for Sterling Apartments located at 3164 North Sterling Ave, San 
Bernardino, CA 
  
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Retroactively authorize the Executive Director to execute the lease agreement for Sterling 
Apartments with Sterling HACSB, LLC. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305)..Body 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #2: To be known as a trusted provider of safe, dignified, and 
desirable homes and environments that enrich and add value to the community.  
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The cost of the lease agreement is projected to be funded through income generated through the 
property’s operations.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino received approval to pursue this lease 
agreement structure from the board for Loma Vista apartments at a prior board meeting. 
Unfortunately, the acquisition of Loma Vista did not materialize. However, the Aspen Group and 
HACSB have identified another property that is a good candidate for this acquisition and lease 
structure. 
 
HACSB is entering into a partnership via this lease agreement for Sterling Apartments with the 
Aspen Group, which will be the majority owner of the property. HACSB will take minor ownership 
through membership in Sterling HACSB, LLC, which will be the ownership entity. HACSB will 
operate the property via its third-party property management company, Beacon Property 
Management. Furthermore, HACSB will gain additional ownership interest incrementally for each 
year of the lease agreement at 2.5% per annum. HACSB may have to contribute up to $320,000 
to help close the transaction. This contribution is not contemplated in the current version of the 
lease agreement, however, if it is needed, HACSB will receive an additional ownership interest of 
3.08% at the inception of the lease. 
 
This agreement allows HACSB to add a newly-constructed multi-family property consisting of 27 
units to its portfolio with little to no funds contributed towards the purchase. Since the property is 
new construction and unoccupied, HACSB will receive lease and operating reserve funds in the 
amount of $813,076 at the inception of the lease term.  
 
 

43



Long-Term Lease Agreement for Sterling Apartments Located at 3164 North Sterling Ave, San 
Bernardino, CA 
April 8, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, April 3, 2025. 

 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Delinquent landlord accounts for the Housing Services Programs to be Written Off as Collection 
Loss. 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve delinquent landlord accounts for the Housing Services Programs to be written off as 
collection losses. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The write-off of these accounts receivable is $56,123.00. Each year, the Housing Authority 
budgets for these types of write-offs as a provision for bad debt. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino maintains collections efforts with 
landlords. The landlord collections are typically due to Housing Assistance Payments being paid 
after an assisted tenant vacated the premises without notice. When a landlord leaves program 
participation owing money to the agency, the department continues collection efforts. Collection 
efforts include attempting to recoup outstanding debt from other tenant accounts when the debt 
is not paid in full after 30 days. In the event there are no other tenant accounts to recover the debt 
from, the landlord will be disqualified from participating in the Housing Choice Voucher program 
until the debt is fully satisfied. If collection efforts fail, the debt is referred to the collection agency. 
 
All the debts listed are from former landlords where the Housing Authority’s efforts to collect the 
remaining balances were unsuccessful. The total amount does not include former landlord 
account balances that the Housing Authority is currently working to collect. The total write-off for 
landlords is $56,123.00. These landlord debts span several previous years as we are conducting 
a cleanup process of removing landlord debts owed to HACSB. The dates of the debts may vary 
for this reason. This is part of a new recurring process to address and resolve outstanding landlord 
debts. These accounts will be referred to a collection agency for further action. Attached is a 
report that itemizes the individual accounts.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable 

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on March 21, 2025. 

101



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino
COLLECTION WRITE-OFFS: HOUSING SERVICES PROGRAMS

Former Landlords

Program

Vendor 

Code
Last Name First Name tcode Total Owed Status Delinquency Date Owner Status

310110 R D 232.00$             Delinquent 05/01/23 Past

310300 W N/A 2,724.00$          Delinquent 11/01/21 Past

310300 W N/A 10,840.00$        Delinquent 03/01/22 Past

310300 D D 2,952.00$          Delinquent 06/01/22 Past

310300 A S 3,625.00$          Delinquent 08/01/23 Past

310300 F H 778.00$             Delinquent 07/01/23 Past

310300 L H 532.00$             Delinquent 10/01/17 Past

310300 A N/A 532.00$             Delinquent 05/01/18 Past

310300 R J 1,450.00$          Delinquent 05/01/18 Past

310300 M J 717.00$             Delinquent 12/01/17 Past

310300 B B 782.00$             Delinquent 06/01/18 Past

310300 B B 874.00$             Delinquent 06/01/18 Past

310300 H J 363.00$             Delinquent 06/01/18 Past

310300 H J 555.00$             Delinquent 06/01/18 Past

310350 T S 10,680.00$        Delinquent 08/01/19 Past

310350 A N/A 2,500.00$          Delinquent 02/01/18 Past

310370 G E 1,097.00$          Delinquent 11/01/17 Past

310370 G E 984.00$             Delinquent 11/01/17 Past

310371 T C 711.00$             Delinquent 11/30/22 Past

316057 C A 862.00$             Delinquent 08/31/23 Past

316059 J N/A 1,972.00$          Delinquent 09/30/21 Past

340067 H N/A 10,361.00$        Delinquent 04/30/24 Past

TOTAL: 56,123.00$        

 Page 1 of 1

102



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Meeting Minutes for the Special Meeting Held on March 17, 2025 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
Approve the meeting minutes for the special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino held on March 17, 2025. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #2: To be known as a trusted provider of safe, dignified, and 
desirable homes and environments that enrich and add value to the community.  
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Bernardino (HACSB) as there are no financial impacts associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The HACSB Board of Commissioners (Board) Special Meeting took place on March 17, 2025, 
and attached are the meeting minutes for review and recommended approval by the Board.   
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on April 3, 2025. 

 

103



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

March 17, 2025 

 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino met for 

a special meeting at the Administration Office, at 715 East Brier Drive, San Bernardino, 

California at 3:06 p.m. on March 17, 2025. 

 

Details of the meeting discussion can be obtained through the recording of the Board of 

Commissioners meeting through a Public Records Request submitted in person or through the 

HACSB website: https://hacsb.com/public-records-request/   

 

1) Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

The meeting was called to order, and upon roll call, the following were present:  

    

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

Also in attendance were Maria Razo, Executive Director; Kristin Maithonis, Director of Housing 

Services; Nicole Beydler, Director of Policy and Communications; Jesse Diaz, Director of 

Business Services; Jennifer Dawson, Director of Administrative Services; Lucy Leslie, Director 

of Housing Communities; Angie Lardapide, Procurement and Contracts Supervisor; John Moore, 

Director of Development; Renee Kangas, Sr. Management Analyst; Armando Salazar, 

Management Analyst; Eduardo Martinez, Asset Management Supervisor and Rebekah 

Castellanos, Talent Acquisition Specialist.  

 

Also present, was Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority.  

 

2) Additions or Deletions to the Agenda 

 

Chair Cooper called for additions or deletions to the March 17, 2025, agenda. The Executive 

Director requested for item #8 to be tabled to the next board meeting because the attachments 

were missing from the board packet.   

 

3) General Public Comment 

 

Chair Cooper provided an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of 

Commissioners. There were none.  

 

4) Introduction and welcome of new board member 

 

Executive Director did the introduction and welcome to Commissioner Jain. 

 

Discussion and formal introductions amongst the Board of Commissioners took place regarding 

the welcome of new board member Commissioner Jain.  

 

 

104

https://hacsb.com/public-records-request/


Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 2 

 

 

 

5) Executive Director’s Report 

 

The Executive Director’s Report was requested. 

Executive Director provided the Executive Director’s Report. 

 

Discussion amongst the Board of Commissioners took place regarding the Executive Director’s 

Report for March 17, 2025.  

 

 

6) Board Building Presentation for March 17, 2025 

 

Discussion calendar item number 6, to receive the board building presentation for March 17, 

2025, a recap of the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s legislative Capitol 

Hill visits, was requested 

 

Executive Director explained the item.  

 

Director of Policy and Communications, Nicole Beydler, further explained the item and 

presented the board building presentation.  

 

Discussion amongst the Board of Commissioners took place regarding the discussion calendar 

item number 6. 

 

7) Revision of the Administrative Plan Governing the Housing Authority of the County of 

San Bernardino’s Rental Assistance Programs  

 

Discussion calendar item number 7, to adopt Resolution No. 207 approving revisions to the 

Administrative Plan governing the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s rental 

assistance programs, was requested.  

 

Executive Director explained the item.  

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve discussion calendar item number 7, as recommended by 

staff and Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

 

 

105



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 3 

 

 

8) Revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy of the Housing Authority 

of the County of San Bernardino 

 

 

Discussion calendar item number 8, to adopt Resolution No. 208 approving revisions to the 

Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy governing the Housing Authority of the County of 

San Bernardino, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, 

was requested.  

 

Due to the absence of the attachment, which was not included in the board packet provided to the 

team, this item was tabled. The matter will be addressed at the next prescheduled Board of 

Commissioners meeting. 

 

9) Collection Losses for Delinquent Accounts of Housing Services Programs for the month 

of December 2024 

 

Discussion calendar item number 9, to approve the write-off of delinquent accounts for the 

Housing Services Program as collection losses for the month of December 2024, was requested. 

 

Discussion amongst the Board of Commissioners took place regarding the discussion calendar 

item number 9. 

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve discussion calendar item number 9, as recommended by 

staff and Commissioner MacDuff seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes Nays                                  Abstained                                                     

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

10) Appropriations Increase for Temporary Employment Services – Maintenance 

 

 

Discussion calendar item number 10, to 1) Approve an increase in appropriations, effective 

March 18, 2025, for temporary employment services – maintenance in the amount of $200,000 

for an overall amount not to exceed $600,000, 2) Approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 

PC1314, effective March 18, 2025, for temporary employment services – maintenance with 

AtWork Personnel Services and HB Staffing to exercise the first option year through June 30, 

2026 was requested. 

 

 

 

106



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 4 

 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve discussion calendar item number 10, as recommended 

by staff and Commissioner Thomas seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

  Ayes Nays                                  Abstained                                                     

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

11) Extension of Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract 

with HACSB Andalusia Apartments, LLC for No Child Left Unsheltered Program  

 

Discussion calendar item number 11, to 1) Approve a contract extension of the Project-Based 

Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract with HACSB Andalusia Apartments, 

LLC for nine No Child Left Unsheltered Program units, for an additional one-year period from 

April 1, 2025 through March 31, 2026, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute 

and deliver the contract extension to HACSB Andalusia Apartments, LLC, and upon 

consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete 

the transaction, was requested. 

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve discussion calendar item number 11, as recommended 

by staff and Commissioner Jain seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

12) Extension of Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract 

with HACSB Hampton Court, LLC for the No Child Left Unsheltered Program 

 

Discussion calendar item number 12, to 1) Approve a contract extension of the Project-Based 

Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract with HACSB Hampton Court, LLC 

for four No Child Left Unsheltered Program units, for an additional one-year period from April 

1, 2025 through March 31, 2026, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and 

deliver the contract extension to HACSB Hampton Court, LLC, and upon consultation with 

Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, 

was requested. 

 

107



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 5 

 

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve discussion calendar item number 12, as recommended 

by staff and Commissioner Jain seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

 

13) Extension of Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract 

with HACSB Sunset Gardens Apartments, LLC for the No Child Left Unsheltered 

Program  

 

Discussion calendar item number 13, to 1) Approve a contract extension of the Project-Based 

Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract with HACSB Sunset Gardens 

Apartments, LLC for four No Child Left Unsheltered Program units, for an additional one-year 

period from April 1, 2025 through March 31, 2026, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive 

Director to execute and deliver the contract extension to HACSB Sunset Gardens Apartments, 

LLC, and upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions 

necessary to complete the transaction, was requested. 

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve discussion calendar item number 13, as recommended 

by staff and Commissioner Jain seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

14) Contract for Fuel and Fleet Maintenance of Agency Vehicles with San Bernardino 

County Fleet Management Department 

 

Discussion calendar item number 14, to 1) Approve Contract PC1393, effective April 29, 2025, 

with San Bernardino County’s Fleet Management Department in an amount not to exceed 

$495,000, for a three-year base period through April 29, 2028, with options to extend the 

contract for up to two single-year extensions through April 29, 2030, 2) Authorize and direct the 

Executive Director to execute and deliver any related documents, and upon consultation with 

Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, 

was requested. 

108



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 6 

 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve discussion calendar item number 14, as recommended 

by staff and Commissioner Miller seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

15, 16, and 17) Consent Calendar  

 

Approval of the consent calendar including agenda item numbers 15-17 was requested. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve consent calendar agenda item numbers 15-17,  

15) Approve the meeting minutes for the special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 

Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino held on February 18, 2025. 

16) Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through November 2024. 

17) Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as 

collection losses for the month of December 2024. 

 

The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller.  

 

Upon roll call vote, the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                                        

 Chair-Cooper 

 Vice-Chair MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Thomas 

 Commissioner Johnson 

 Commissioner Jain 

 

Chair Cooper provided an opportunity for individual board member comments. There were none.  

 

There being no other business, Commissioner Miller moved for the annual meeting of Monday, 

March 17, 2025, to be adjourned, and which motion was duly seconded by Commissioner 

Thomas. There being no objection to the call for adjournment, the meeting was adjourned by 

unanimous consent at 4:41 p.m. 

  

                                                           _                                                            _ 

Beau Cooper, Chair                                        Cassie MacDuff, Vice Chair 

 

                                                            _                                                               _ 

Tim Johnson       Sylvia Miller 

109



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for March 17, 2025   

Page 7 

 

 

 

                                                            _                                                               _ 

Michael Thomas       Sid Jain 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Secretary 

110



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Agency-wide Financial Statements through December 2024  
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through December 2024. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305)  
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) year-to-date agency-wide net 

loss through December 2024 for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2024-25 is ($738,729). This net loss 

is currently lower than the budgeted net loss of ($1,156,965) with a variance of $418,236. A draw 

from HACSB HUD Held Reserves (HHR) will be used to cover the budgeted loss of $1.2 million. 

The actual draw amount will be based on actuals but is estimated to be the budgeted amount of 

$1.2 million. Further explanation on HHR is listed in the section below.   

The $418,236 variance between the budgeted and the actual net income is due to the variance 

of gains and losses to the budget, such as: 

• The HCV program received $3.3 million more in Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) 

funding from HUD when compared to the budgeted amount. HACSB expects to receive 

all HAP funds that were awarded, but the actual funds that are received are based on prior 

months’ HAP expenses. This causes a variance between the amount of funding budgeted, 

and the amount received.   

o An annual reconciliation between the amount of HAP funding received and the 

amount that should have been received is performed by HUD and HACSB. This 

reconciliation determines the difference between the authorized funding amount 

and the actual funding received. 

▪ If the authorized funding exceeds the amount that HACSB received, the 

difference is deposited into a restricted HUD Held Reserve (HHR) account 

which can be used for future eligible expenses, with HUD’s approval. 

▪ If the funds HACSB receives more than the authorized funding amount, a 

withdrawal is made from HHR. 

• Conversely, the HCV program experienced an increase in HAP costs in the amount of $2 

million. This was mainly due to rising rents.  Unlike the funding in the HCV program, HAP 

is not budgeted at a 100% lease rate. It is budgeted based on an estimated lease rate for 

111



Agency-wide Financial Statements through December 2024 
April 8, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

the year, estimated available funding per federally approved appropriations, and on 

approved use of restricted HAP HUD held reserves. 

• Physical needs work was $1.1 million less than budgeted. This amount is reflected in the 

extraordinary maintenance line on the financial statements and the variance is due to 

delays in projects due to higher than expected costs and the need to value engineer or 

rebid said projects. 

• The total amount of Other Income revenue is $1.5 lower than the budgeted $3.3 million.  

This is due to a delay in the residual receipts calculation for 2024.  We expect that this 

calculation will be done by the end of the fiscal year.  

• Depreciation expenses are not budgeted and amount to $1.2 million. This is not a cash 

transaction and is based on the accrual accounting procedures required by GAAP that 

reduce the value of fixed assets over time.  Non-cash transactions like depreciation are 

important and required as they impact an agency’s financial statements, but not its cash 

flow. 

The information provided is based on unaudited information. During the audit process, revenue 

and expenses are typically adjusted and we expect a material amount of expenses related to the 

pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plans to be recognized during this process. 

This will lead to a decrease in the operating net income. The audited financial report will be 

provided to the Board of Commissioners once the audit process has been completed. The audit 

process will be completed in late June 2025 for the prior fiscal year which is when the audited 

financial statements are submitted to HUD.  

Financial Summary FY 2025 YTD 

Revenues $63,779,939  

Expenses $(63,359,080)  

Operating Net Income/(Loss) $420,859       

Operating Transfers/Non-Operating Items $(1,159,588) 

Net Income/(Loss) $(738,729)  

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB administers multiple housing programs and is the largest provider of affordable housing 
in the County of San Bernardino. The FFY 2024-25 budget and financial operations continue to 
support the vision and mission of HACSB and are in line with its Strategic Plan and Moving to 
Work Annual Plans. Overall, HACSB has demonstrated fiscal stability even through the 
challenges presented by delays in the federal budget process.  
 
We continue to focus on maintaining the agency’s fiscal stability, customer service, innovation, 
best practices, partnerships that will assist our staff and families, and show a continued passion 
for our agency’s mission. 
 
Based on HUD’s guidance to routinely present key information to HACSB’s Board of 
Commissioners, HACSB is presenting the financial statements monthly.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 

112



Agency-wide Financial Statements through December 2024 
April 8, 2025 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on April 3, 2025. 

 

 

 

113



Page 1 of 1

 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 

 INCOME

 TENANT INCOME

     Total Rental Income 8,952,755 8,437,583 515,171 6.11 33,745,895

     Total Other Tenant Income 180,108 149,788 30,319 20.24 595,147

 NET TENANT INCOME 9,132,862 8,587,372 545,491 6.35 34,341,043

 GRANT INCOME

 TOTAL GRANT INCOME 52,911,203 49,227,795 3,683,408 7.48 196,976,041

 OTHER INCOME

 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,735,873 3,251,650 -1,515,777 -46.62 9,007,913

 TOTAL INCOME 63,779,939 61,066,816 2,713,122 4.44 240,324,996

 EXPENSES

 GRANT EXPENSES

 TOTAL GRANT EXPENSES 2,833,184 2,494,995 -338,189 -13.55 10,044,842

 ADMINISTRATIVE

     Total Administrative Salaries 4,155,825 4,475,223 319,399 7.14 18,659,130

     Total Legal Expense 126,728 162,181 35,453 21.86 648,657

     Total Other Admin Expenses 1,856,759 2,166,487 309,728 14.30 8,444,201

     Total Miscellaneous Admin Expenses 1,061,962 1,015,067 -46,895 -4.62 3,097,127

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7,201,274 7,818,958 617,684 7.90 30,849,115

 TENANT SERVICES

 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 17,644 49,425 31,782 64.30 179,867

 UTILITIES

 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 1,092,186 1,208,374 116,189 9.62 4,839,943

 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS

     Total General Maint Expense 1,124,889 968,483 -156,406 -16.15 3,982,483

     Total Materials 384,881 289,125 -95,756 -33.12 1,152,934

     Total Contract Costs 1,388,041 1,141,804 -246,237 -21.57 4,558,556

 TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 2,897,810 2,399,412 -498,398 -20.77 9,693,972

 GENERAL EXPENSES

 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 828,283 638,847 -189,435 -29.65 2,394,281

 EXTRAORDINARY MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

 TOTAL EXTRAORDINARY MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 916,166 2,059,712 1,143,546 55.52 6,583,396

 HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS

 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 47,058,728 45,039,002 -2,019,726 -4.48 180,156,007

 FINANCING EXPENSE

 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 513,806 515,055 1,249 0.24 2,087,990

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 63,359,079 62,223,781 -1,135,299 -1.82 246,829,414

 OPERATING NET INCOME 420,859 -1,156,965 1,577,824 136.38 -6,504,418

 NET OPERATING TRANSFER IN/OUT 0 0 0 N/A 0

 NON-OPERATING ITEMS

 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 1,159,588 0 -1,159,588 N/A 0

 NET INCOME -738,729 -1,156,965 418,236 36.15 -6,504,418

HACSB

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2024-Dec 2024

 

114



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

April 8, 2025 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Vacated Tenant Accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be Written Off as Collection Loss 
for the Month of January 2025 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as collection 
losses for the month of January 2025. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT 
Aspirational Statement #3: To pursue continued financial stability, monitoring, and 
accountability as stewards of limited funding.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The accounts receivable loss for the month ending January 31, 2025, is $73,422.97. The Housing 
Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) projects and anticipates collection losses in 
its annual budget.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On a monthly basis, HACSB records vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio 
for the purpose of being written off to collection losses.  Authority Owned Portfolio units are owned 
by HACSB and were either acquired or developed through a variety of partnerships with local 
governments and/or HACSB’s non-profit affiliate Housing Partners I, Inc., and include public 
housing developments converted through the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s (HUD) Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program.  
 
Despite HACSB’s efforts to collect the debts listed in the attached reports, it has been determined 
that such debts are uncollectible. As part of HACSB’s standard property management business 
practices, Board of Commissioners approval is requested to write off these accounts as accounts 
receivable losses to the Authority Owned Portfolio. Losses during this time period (January 1 – 
January 31, 2025) are primarily for voluntary move-outs and evictions. The total write-off for the 
month of January 2025 is $73,422.97, as delineated in the following table. Attached is a worksheet 
that itemizes the individual accounts.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



Vacated Tenant Accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be Written Off as Collection Loss 
for the Month of January 2025 
April 8, 2025   
   
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

                        SUMMARY FOR HACSB- Authority Owned Properties    

     
PROPERTY NO. VACATED TOTAL 

481130- Maplewood 1 
                  

258.00  

481172- Bighorn  1 
               

7,721.00  

481174- Yosemite 1 
               

7,911.00  

402 - Summit Place  1 
                  

303.00  

403 - Summit Walk 1 
             

14,758.00  

407 - Sunset Pointe  2 
                  

810.00  

408 - Sunrise Vista 4 
             

17,896.65  

409 - Andalusia 2 
               

9,146.78  

416 - Arrowhead  4 
               

3,314.00  

428 - Charlemagne 0 
                        

-    

437 - Sunset Gardens 0 
                        

-    

467 - Hillcrest 1 
                  

793.81  

490 - Northport 0 
                        
-    

Concessions Write Off   
                        

-    

TOTAL RENT WRITE 
OFF 18 

             
62,912.24  

Miscellaneous Charges   
                   

2,316.37  

Maintenance Charges   
               

9,519.36  

Legal Charges   
               

8,840.00  

Security Deposits Applied   
            

(10,165.00) 

NET TOTAL WRITE OFF   
             

73,422.97  

 
 
 
 
 
 

116



Vacated Tenant Accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be Written Off as Collection Loss 
for the Month of January 2025 
April 8, 2025   
   
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable 

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on March 21, 2025.  

 

117



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino 
COLLECTION WRITE OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio

Month End: 01/31/25

Item # Last Name First Name ID No. REASON

 MONTHLY

RENT 

 UNPAID

RENT (*) 

 CONC. 

REVERSAL 

 UNPAID

MISC (*) 

 MAINT.

FEES 

 LEGAL

FEES 

 TOTAL

OWED 

 LESS

DEPOSIT 

 NET

DUE 

481130- Maplewood

1 B E N/A D 272.00         258.00         50.00           340.00        612.00        250.00               398.00 

2

 TOTALS:         258.00                 -           50.00           340.00              -          612.00        250.00               398.00 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1 N/A

2

481172- Bighorn 

1 H K T0109663 E    1,297.00      7,721.00       626.45           850.00     9,197.45        540.00            8,657.45 

2
 TOTALS:      7,721.00                 -         626.45           850.00              -       9,197.45        540.00            8,657.45 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1 Notice to Pay or Quit 03/07/24 Posted  04/10/24 06/01/24 N N/A

2

481174- Yosemite

1 M M t0109978 E 891.00 7,911.00     2,240.00         10,151.00        800.00            9,351.00 

2

TOTALS: 7,911.00    -             -            2,240.00       -           10,151.00 800.00      9,351.00           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1 Notice to Pay or Quit 05/07/24 Posted  06/14/24 8/1/2024 N N/A

2

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

01/30/25

 Lock Out Date 

 Lock Out Date 

Vacate Date

01/14/24 01/14/25

Vacate Date

01/14/25 01/14/25

*Reasons: E=Eviction S=Skip V=Voluntary T=Terminated Tenancy   **Unpaid Misc.:   D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc. 

118



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino 
COLLECTION WRITE OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio

Month End: 01/31/25

402 - Summit Place 

1 D M t0044117 V    1,815.00         303.00           450.00        753.00        600.00               153.00 

                -                  -                         -   
 TOTALS:         303.00                 -                 -             450.00              -          753.00        600.00               153.00 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1

403 - Summit Walk

2 R A t0040538 E    1,955.00    14,758.00                 -           50.00        1,838.36   1,500.00   18,146.36        800.00          17,346.36 

                -                  -                         -   
 TOTALS:    14,758.00                 -           50.00        1,838.36   1,500.00   18,146.36        800.00          17,346.36 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

2 Notice to Pay or Quit 07/09/24 Posted 08/23/24 08/26/24 N/A N/A

407 - Sunset Pointe 

3 L L t0027183 V 1,200.00   523.00        11.00        1,169.00           1,703.00        100.00            1,603.00 

4 M D t0042004 T 957.00      287.00       300.00                 587.00        500.00                 87.00 

TOTALS: 810.00       -             11.00        1,469.00       -           2,290.00   600.00      1,690.00           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

3

4 Notice to Pay or Quit 01/09/25 Posted N/A

408 - Sunrise Vista

5 B M t0013306 E 875.00      4,052.00    44.98        1,198.00       1,340.00      6,634.98        400.00            6,234.98 

6 W L t0043491 E 876.00      7,826.00    732.35      646.46          1,500.00    10,704.81        876.00            9,828.81 

7 L H t0039384 E 1,400.00   2,862.65    251.59      302.00          1,500.00      4,916.24        600.00            4,316.24 

8 O P t0030083 E 1,100.00   3,156.00    575.00          1,500.00      5,231.00        500.00            4,731.00 

-             -                          -                         -   

TOTALS: 17,896.65  -             1,028.92   2,721.46       5,840.00  27,487.03 2,376.00   25,111.03         

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

5 Notice to Pay or Quit 07/22/24 Posted 07/22/24 08/23/24 N

6 Notice to Pay or Quit 07/22/24 Posted 07/22/24 10/18/24 Y 12/05/24
7 Notice to Pay or Quit 09/24/24 Posted 09/24/24 09/29/24 Y 01/23/25
8 Notice to Pay or Quit 07/22/24 Posted 07/22/24 08/29/24 Y 10/31/24

01/21/25 01/21/25

01/28/25

01/05/25

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

Vacate Date Lock Out Date 

12/17/24 12/17/24

01/21/25 01/21/25

01/09/25

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

01/09/25

Vacate Date Lock Out Date 

turned in keys to avoid lock out 01/30/25

01/28/25

*Reasons: E=Eviction S=Skip V=Voluntary T=Terminated Tenancy   **Unpaid Misc.:   D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc. 

119



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino 
COLLECTION WRITE OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio

Month End: 01/31/25

9 C R (1,500.75)        (1,500.75)           (1,500.75)

10 S J (200.00)              (200.00)              (200.00)

11 M G t0043206 V 1,800.00   358.00       1,778.24           2,136.24     1,800.00               336.24 

12 H M t0041520 T 1,272.00   8,788.78    300.00      518.05              9,606.83        799.00            8,807.83 

               -                         -   

TOTALS: 9,146.78    -             300.00      595.54          -           10,042.32 2,599.00   7,443.32           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

9

10

11

12 Notice to Pay or Quit 09/06/24 Posted 11/20/24 N/A

416 - Arrowhead 

13 F L t0035321 D 1,550.00   453.00       50.00        174.00                 677.00        400.00               277.00 

14 E A t0021014 E 1,550.00   2,308.00    50.00        654.00          1,500.00      4,512.00        200.00            4,312.00 

15 H T t0040731 D 1,550.00   266.00       50.00        114.00                 430.00        400.00                 30.00 

16 M H t0012729 D 1,550.00   287.00       50.00        114.00                 451.00        200.00               251.00 

TOTALS: 3,314.00    -             200.00      1,056.00       1,500.00  6,070.00   1,200.00   4,870.00           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

13 N/A

14 Notice to pay or Quit 07/15/24 Posted 08/15/24 08/26/24 N N/A

15 N/A

16 N/A

428 - Charlemagne

17 G C (285.00)              (285.00)              (285.00)

               -                         -   

TOTALS: -             -             -            (285.00)         -           (285.00)     -            (285.00)             

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

17

409 - Andalusia

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

Payment on bad debt

Payment on bad debt

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

01/15/25

01/06/25

01/15/25

Payment on bad debt

12/13/24 12/13/24

12/31/24

12/31/24

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

*Reasons: E=Eviction S=Skip V=Voluntary T=Terminated Tenancy   **Unpaid Misc.:   D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc. 

120



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino 
COLLECTION WRITE OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio

Month End: 01/31/25

437 - Sunset Gardens

18 S D -             (500.00)              (500.00)              (500.00)

-                            -                         -   

TOTALS: -             -             -            (500.00)         -           (500.00)     -            (500.00)             

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

18

467 - Hillcrest

19 E C t0044124 V       747.00         793.81         50.00           552.00     1,395.81        400.00               995.81 

               -                         -   
 TOTALS:         793.81                 -           50.00           552.00              -       1,395.81        400.00               995.81 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

19

490 - Northport

20 C A t0044194 (1,808.00)        (1,808.00)           (1,808.00)

               -                         -   

TOTALS: -             -             -            (1,808.00)      -           (1,808.00)  -            (1,808.00)          

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

20

62,912.24  -             2,316.37   9,519.36       8,840.00  83,551.97 10,165.00 73,422.97         

01/15/25

 Lock Out Date 

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

Payment on bad debt

Vacate Date

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

ALL PROPERTY TOTALS:

Adjustment to previous month write off

*Reasons: E=Eviction S=Skip V=Voluntary T=Terminated Tenancy   **Unpaid Misc.:   D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc. 

121


	MEMO-BOC-040825-Executive Director's Report - FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-040825 Board Building Update on Development Projects - FINAL
	MEMO- BOC-040825-ACOP Revisions 3.2025 FINAL
	RES-BOC-040825 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy Revisions FINAL
	ATT- BOC- 031725 Summary of Admissions and Continued Occupancy Polices Changes HOTMA March 2025
	ATT2- BOC- 031725 Redline of Admissions and Continued Occupancy Polices Changes HOTMA March 2025
	1.6
	1.8
	2.2.7
	5.1.4
	5.1.6.8
	5.1.6.11.5
	5.1.7.1
	5.1.7.5
	5.3.2.1 & 5.3.4
	6.3.5
	13.4.2.1

	MEMO-BOC-040825 Sale of PHA Owned Homes with RES FINAL
	RES-BOC-040825 Sale of HACSB Owned Homes
	ATT-BOC-040825 PHA Owned Homes Policy(1028443.6) FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-040825 Sterling Lease Agreement FINAL
	ATT-BOC-040825-Lease-Aspen-HACSB-Sterling Avenue 2025-4938-4754-1533-v7-signed - signed - -
	MEMO-BOC-040825 Housing Services Collection Loss up to March 2025 FINAL
	ATT-BOC-040825 Housing Services Collection Loss Report
	MEMO-BOC-040825-Meeting Minutes for Special Meeting March 17, 2025 - FINAL
	ATT-BOC-4.8.2025-Approval of the Special Meeting Minutes for 3.17.2025 FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-04.08.2025 December 2024 Financials FINAL
	ATT-BOC-040825 Consolidated Budget to Actuals 12.2024
	MEMO-BOC-040825 AOP Vacated Accounts for January 2025 FINAL
	ATT-BOC 040825 AOP Vacated Accounts



